
NEVADA STATE BOARD
of

DENTAL EXAMINERS

Board Teleconference Meeting

Wednesday, June 11, 2025 

6:00 p.m.

PUBLIC BOOK  



        

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046
www.dental.nv.gov

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
OFFICE OF NEVADA BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COUNCILS STANDARDS

NEVADA STATE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE & BOARD MEETING AGENDA

Meeting Date & Time
Wednesday, June 11, 2025

6:00 p.m.

Meeting Location
Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners
2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104

Henderson, NV 89014

Video Conferencing/ Teleconferencing Available
To access by phone, +1(646) 568-7788

To access by video webinar, 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86096749328
Webinar/Meeting ID#: 860 9674 9328

Webinar/Meeting Passcode: 952709

PUBLIC NOTICE:
Public Comment by pre-submitted email/written form and Live Public Comment by teleconference is available 
after roll call (beginning of meeting and prior to adjournment (end of meeting). Live Public Comment is limited to three (3)
minutes for each individual.

Members of the public may submit public comment in written form to: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 2651 
N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, Henderson, NV 89014; FAX number (702) 486-7046; e-mail address
nsbde@dental.nv.gov. Written submissions received by the Board on or before Tuesday, June 10, 2025, by 12:00 p.m.
may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other written public comment submissions received prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting will be included in the permanent record.

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners may: 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate persons appearing
before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; 
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character, 
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. See NRS 241.030. Prior to the
commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an 
individual the board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 233B.126.

Persons/facilities who want to be on the mailing list must submit a written request every six (6) months to the Nevada State 
Board of Dental Examiners at the address listed in the previous paragraph. With regard to any board meeting or telephone 
conference, it is possible that an amended agenda will be published adding new items to the original agenda. Amended
Nevada notices will be posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law.

We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and wish to attend the 

JOE LOMBARDO
Governor

DR. KRISTOPHER SANCHEZ
Director

PERRY FAIGIN
NIKKI HAAG

MARCEL F. SCHAERER
Deputy Directors

A.L. HIGGINBOTHAM
Executive Director



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the Board, at (702) 486-7044, no later than 48 
hours prior to the meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed. 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2) you may contact at (702) 486-7044, to request supporting materials for the public body or you 
may download the supporting materials for the public body from the Board’s website at http://dental.nv.gov In addition, the 
supporting materials for the public body are available at the Board’s office located at 2651 N. Green Valley Pkwy, Ste. 104, 
Henderson, NV 89014. 

Note: Asterisks (*) “For Possible Action” denotes items on which the Board may take action.  
 Note: Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table it.  

 

1. Call to Order 

 

a. Roll Call/Quorum 

 

2. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference and pre-submitted 
email/written form): The public comment period is limited to matters specifically noticed on 
the agenda. No action may be taken upon the matter raised during the public comment unless the 
matter itself has been specifically included on the agenda as an action item. Comments by the public 
may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable time, place and manner restriction, but may not 
be limited to based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson may allow additional time at his/her discretion.  

 
Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, June 10, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other 
written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record. 

 
In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chair may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a topic that 
is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, or if the 
content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, offensive, 
inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of other 
speakers.  

 

3. President’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Request to Remove Agenda Item(s) (For Possible Action) 

 

b. Approve Agenda (For Possible Action) 

 

4. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Approval/Rejection of Minutes – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. May 14, 2025 – Board Meeting  

ii. May 28, 2025 – Anesthesia Committee 

 

5. Executive Team Report: (For Possible Action) 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

 

a. Legal Actions/Litigation Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

 

b. Regulatory Update (For Informational Purposes Only) 

 
i. AB143 

ii. AB334 

iii. SB78 

iv. SB495 

v. SB507 

vi. R072-22 Approved Dental Therapy Regulations 

 

c. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of the Revised Proposed 

Regulations for RO56-24 Teledentistry – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

d. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Remand(s) – NRS 631.3635; 

NRS 622A.170; NRS 622.330; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. Review Panel 1 

 

1. Case # 2458 

2. Case # 2474 

 

ii. Review Panel 2 

 

1. Case # 1966 

2. Case # 2433 

3. Case # 2452 

4. Case # 2456 

5. Case # 2464 

6. Case #2465 

 

iii. Review Panel 3 

 

1. Case # 2137 

2. Case # 2150 

3. Case # 2442 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

4. Case # 2443 

5. Case # 2444 

6. Case # 2449 

7. Case # 2451 

8. Case # 2469 

9. Case # 2475  

10. Case # 2480 

11. Case # 2481 

12. Case # 2483 

 

e. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Authorized Investigation(s) – 

NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. Dr. Z 

ii. Dr. Y 

iii. Dr. X 

 

6. New Business: (For Possible Action) 

 

a. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Committee Bylaws – NRS 
631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

i. Review Panel Bylaws 
ii. Board Composition and Term Schedule Bylaws 

iii. Board Vacancies and Expired Terms Bylaws 
 

b. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the FY26 Budget – NRS 631. 
190 (For Possible Action) 
 

c. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of the State IT Equipment 
Upgrade Proposal – NAC 631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 
d. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Advisory Opinions - NRS 

631.190 (For Possible Action) 

 

i. Appropriate Medications and Dosage Ranges for Permit Holders Performing 
Moderate Sedation 

ii. Participation of Educational Institution Faculty Holder Specialty-Only Dental 
License Performing Screenings at Dental Clinic 

iii. Infection Control Compliance for Mobile, Pop-Up, and Other Non-Traditional 
Dental Services Locations 



         
   

Las Vegas:  2651 N Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104, Henderson, Nevada 89014 - Telephone (702) 486-7044 - Fax (702) 486-7046 
www.dental.nv.gov 

 

 
e. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Permanent Anesthesia 

Permit – NAC 631.2235; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

i. Dr. Brittni Wait, DDS –Moderate Sedation (13+) 
ii. Dr. Jonathan Runion, DMD – Moderate Sedation (13+) 

 
f. Review, Discussion, and Possible Approval/Rejection of Temporary Anesthesia 

Permit – NAC 631.2234; NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action) 
 

i. Dr. Charlene Mo, DMD – Pediatric Moderate Sedation 
ii. Dr. Kevin Vernet, DMD – Moderate Sedation (13+) 

g. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection to Hire a Temporary (3-6 
month) Infection Control Program Developer – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)  
 

i. Dr. Helen Kanian, DDS 
 

h. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection to Donate Teeth Sets and 
Associated Equipment as Equally as Possible to the CODA-Approved Dental and 
Dental Hygiene Programs in Nevada – NRS 631.190 (For Possible Action)  
 

i. Review, Discussion and Possible Approval/Rejection of Candidate(s) for the 
Unclassified General Counsel Position – NRS 631.19; NRS 631.160; NRS 622.20 (For 
Possible Action) 

 
7. Public Comment (Live public comment by teleconference): This public comment 

period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the public body. No action may be taken upon 
the matter raised during public comment unless the matter itself has been specifically included on the 
agenda as an action item. Comments by the public may be limited to three (3) minutes as a reasonable 
time, place and manner restriction but may not be limited based upon viewpoint. The Chairperson 
may allow additional time at his/her discretion.  

 
Members of the public may submit public comment via email to nsbde@dental.nv.gov, or by 
mailing/faxing messages to the Board office. Written submissions received by the Board on or before 
Tuesday, June 10, 2025, by 12:00 p.m. may be entered into the record during the meeting. Any other 
written public comment submissions received prior to the adjournment of the meeting will be 
included in the permanent record.  

 
In accordance with Attorney General Opinion No. 00-047, as restated in the Attorney General’s Open 
Meeting Law Manual, the Chairperson may prohibit comment if the content of that comment is a 
topic that is not relevant to, or within the authority of, the Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners, 
or if the content is willfully disruptive of the meeting by being irrelevant, repetitious, slanderous, 
offensive, inflammatory, irrational, or amounting to personal attacks or interfering with the rights of 
speakers.  

 
8. Announcements:  
 
9. Adjournment: (For Possible Action) 
 
 
 



 











 

























 



italics







For the purposes of NRS 631.3122, the Board will interpret “direct supervision” 

to mean supervision by a dentist where the dentist: 

 1.  Documents in the record of the patient the name of the dental therapist providing care 

to the patient; 

 2.  Examines the patient before the dental therapist performs the procedure either face-to-

face or by the use of electronic means; 

 3.  Provides instructions for treating the patient before the dental therapist begins treating 

the patient; and 

 4.  Examines the patient upon completion of the procedures performed by the dental 

therapist. 

Except as otherwise provided in NRS 622.090, in fulfillment of the requirements 

of paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of NRS 631.3121, an applicant taking the clinical 

examination approved by the Board and the American Board of Dental Examiners or the 

clinical examination administered by the Western Regional Examining Board must pass a 

simulated clinical examination in dental therapy or a comparable examination administered 

by the Western Regional Examining Board, as applicable.

In addition to the items required by NRS 631.3123, a written practice agreement 

between a dentist and a dental therapist must include, without limitation: 

 1.  Procedures for the duplication, maintenance and storage of the records of the patients 

of the dental therapist by the authorizing dentist; 



 2.  Specific procedures for the management of medical emergencies, including, without 

limitation: 

 (a) A requirement that the dental therapist must be certified in the administration of 

cardiopulmonary resuscitation in accordance with NAC 631.173; and 

 (b) Procedures for the administration of first aid, an automated external defibrillator and 

supplemental oxygen; 

 3.  The tasks that each staff member is required to perform when a medical emergency 

occurs; and 

 4.  Procedures for the maintenance of a written log to document the monthly review of the 

records of patients which must include, without limitation: 

 (a) Evaluations of each referral of a patient made by the dental therapist to an authorizing 

dentist or an appropriate dental specialist and any follow-up of such a referral;  

 (b) The demographic information of the authorizing dentist and dental therapist, with any 

personally identifying information removed; and  

 (c) Procedures for making the written log available to the Board for review and 

examination upon request.

1.  In accordance with a written practice agreement required pursuant to NRS 

631.3122, a dental therapist may: 

 (a) Provide the following services to a patient who has first been examined by the 

authorizing dentist: 

  (1) Making and exposing cone-beam radiographs; 

  (2) Application of topical preventive or prophylactic agents, including, without 

limitation, fluoride varnishes and pit and fissure sealants; 



  (3) Removal of excess cement from cemented restorations or orthodontic appliances 

without rotary; 

  (4) Re-cementing permanent crowns and bridges with nonpermanent material as a 

palliative treatment; 

  (5) Administering local intraoral chemotherapeutic agents in any form except aerosol, 

including, without limitation, antimicrobial agents, fluoride preparations, topical anesthetics 

and topical desensitizing agents; 

  (6) Minor adjustments and repairs of removable partial dentures; 

  (7) Placement and removal of space maintainers; 

  (8) Cavity preparation; 

  (9) Restoration of primary and permanent teeth; 

  (10) Extractions of primary teeth and permanent teeth with grade three plus mobility 

with recorded periodontal charting; 

  (11) Preparation and placement of preformed crowns on primary teeth; 

  (12) Indirect and direct pulp capping of permanent teeth; 

  (13) Administration of local anesthetic; 

  (14) Sub-gingival curettage; 

  (15) Fabricating mouth guards for temporomandibular joint dysfunction or sleep 

disorders; and 

  (16) Definitive charting of the oral cavity. 

 (b) Provide the following services to a patient who has not first been examined by the 

authorizing dentist: 

  (1) Making a radiograph through periapical, bitewing or panorex; 



  (2) Mechanical polishing; 

  (3) Application of desensitizing medication or resin; 

  (4) Preliminary charting of an oral cavity; 

  (5) Removal of sutures; 

  (6) Instruction and education on oral health and disease prevention, including, without 

limitation, nutritional counseling and dietary analysis; and 

  (7) Fabricating mouth guards for use in sports protection. 

 2.  In addition to performing the examination required by paragraph (a) of subsection 1, 

the authorizing dentist of a dental therapist who provides a service listed in that paragraph 

shall: 

 (a) Document in the record of the patient the name of the dental therapist; and  

 (b) Provide instructions for treating the patient before the dental therapist begins treating 

the patient.  

1.  If an investigation by the Board regarding the supervision of a dental 

therapist by an authorizing dentist reasonably determines that the health, safety or welfare of 

the public or any patient served by the dentist or dental therapist is placed at risk of imminent 

or continued harm by the continued supervision of a dental therapist by the authorizing 

dentist, the Board may summarily suspend the dentist from supervising any dental therapist 

pending the conclusion of a hearing to consider a formal complaint against the dentist or 

dental therapist.  

 2.  The order of summary suspension may be issued only by the Board, the President of 

the Board, the presiding officer of an investigative committee convened by the Board to 



investigate the dentist or dental therapist or the member, employee, investigator or other agent 

of the Board who conducted the investigation. 

 3.  If the Board, the President of the Board, the presiding officer of an investigative 

committee convened by the Board to investigate the dentist or dental therapist or a member, 

employee, investigator or other agent of the Board issues an order to summarily suspend a 

dentist from supervising a dental therapist pursuant to subsection 1, the Board will hold a 

hearing to consider the formal complaint against the dentist or dental therapist. The Board 

will hold the hearing and render a decision concerning the formal complaint not later than 60 

days after the date of issuance of the order, unless the Board and the dentist or dental 

therapist agree to a longer period of time.

dental therapy or 



dental therapy or 

 , 

dental therapy

Fee for a second or subsequent inspection of a facility required by the 

Board to ensure compliance with infection control guidelines ..................  ..........150



dental therapy or 

dental therapy 

or 

 , dental 

therapy

dental therapist or 

Fee for a second or subsequent audit to ensure compliance with continuing 

education requirements ................................................................................  ..........200

 , dental 

therapy

 , dental therapy

 , dental therapist

 , dental therapist



 , from an 

accredited school or college of dental therapy

 , dental therapy



misuse or substance use disorder 

 misuse or substance use disorder;



 , dental therapy

 , dental therapy

being subject to mandatory supervision or 

 , dental therapy

 or 



  (3) Dental therapy pursuant to NRS 631.312; 

 , dental therapy

 , dental therapy

 , dental therapy

Curriculum Guidelines and Standards for Dental Laser Education

 



 , dental therapy

 , dental therapy

Curriculum Guidelines and Standards for Dental Laser Education

 

Curriculum Guidelines and 

Standards for Dental Laser Education

Curriculum Guidelines and Standards for Dental Laser Education

 

http://www.laserdentistry.org/certification#curriculum-guidelines.

Curriculum Guidelines and Standards for Dental 

Laser Education



 , dental therapist

 



 misuse or substance use disorder; 

 , dental therapy

, dental therapy being 



subject to mandatory supervision or

 , dental therapy

 , dental therapy

 

1.  

(a)

(b)



(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)  

 2.  The Board may require an applicant for licensure to practice dentistry, dental hygiene 

or dental therapy to pass such additional examinations for licensure as the Board may 

prescribe if the applicant: 

 (a) Has been previously licensed in this State and has not held such a license for 2 years or 

more, including, without limitation, because the license was revoked or voluntarily 

surrendered; and  

 (b) Has not maintained an active practice outside of this State, including, without 

limitation, because his or her license to practice in another jurisdiction has been suspended, 

revoked, surrendered or because of any other order by a competent authority of another 

jurisdiction. 



 , dental therapy or 

dental hygiene

 , dental therapy or dental 

hygiene, as applicable,

 , dental therapy or dental hygiene, as applicable,

The filing and service of any claim or complaint of malpractice against the licensee; or 

 6.  

 

 3.  A former licensee who has voluntarily surrendered his or her license may apply for a 

new license if he or she meets all criteria required for licensure by this chapter and chapter 

631 of NRS. If a former licensee surrendered his or her license voluntarily while being 

disciplined by the Board or during a pending investigation, the Board may require the former 



licensee to complete any terms of discipline or corrective action not completed as a result of 

the surrender and require additional terms be completed before issuing a new license. 



 , dental 

therapy or dental hygiene

including, without limitation, because 

his or her license to practice in another jurisdiction has been suspended, revoked or 

surrendered or because of any other order by a competent authority of another jurisdiction, 

 including, without limitation, because 

his or her license to practice in another jurisdiction has been suspended, revoked or 



surrendered or because of any other order by a competent authority of another jurisdiction,

 dental therapy or dental hygiene, 

as applicable, 

 

 6.  If the license of a person has been suspended for 2 years or more and the person has 

not maintained an active practice outside of this State, including, without limitation, because 

his or her license to practice in another jurisdiction has been suspended, revoked or 

surrendered or because of any other order by a competent authority of another jurisdiction, 

the Board may require the person to pass such examinations for licensure as the Board may 

prescribe before reinstating the license. 



  Each dental therapist licensed to practice in this State must annually complete at least 

18 hours of instruction in approved courses of continuing education or biennially complete at 

least 40 hours of instruction in approved courses of continuing education, as applicable, based 

on the renewal period set forth in NRS 631.330 for the type of license held by the dental 

therapist. Hours of instruction may not be transferred or carried over from one licensing 

period to another. 

 3.

4.  ,  and 3, 

 , dental therapist

5. 

 , dental therapy



6. 

7. 

6 

8. , 

dental therapy or 

9. 

10. , dental therapy 



 , dental therapy

or dental therapist 

  or dental therapist, as applicable.



 , dental therapist

 , dental therapist

 , dental therapy



 , or 3 

, dental therapist 

 , dental therapy

 



Dental therapist shall submit a signed, written statement in substantially the following 

language for each year since his or her last renewal: 

 

 I, ................, hereby certify to the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada that I have 

obtained at least 18 approved hours of instruction in continuing education during the 

period July 1, ......, through and including June 30, ...... I also certify to the Board of 

Dental Examiners of Nevada that I am currently certified in administering 

cardiopulmonary resuscitation or another medically acceptable means of maintaining 

basic bodily functions which support life. 

 Dated this ........ (day) of ......... (month) of ......... (year) 

 

 .............................................................................. 

 Signature of Dental Therapist 

 

 (c) 



 (d)  , dental therapist

 , dental therapist

 , dental therapist

 , dental therapist



second , dental therapist or 

initial  , dental therapists

and additional follow-up audits, as necessary, 

Guidelines for Infection Control in Dental Health-Care Settings-

2003

dental therapy and dental hygiene, 

Guideline for Disinfection and Sterilization in Healthcare Facilities, 2008

 

https://www.cdc.gov/infection-control/media/pdfs/Guideline-Disinfection-H.pdf.



  ; 

 10.  Dental anesthesiology; 

 11.  Oral medicine; and  

 12.  Orofacial pain.





, dental 

therapist 

dental therapist or 

the dental therapist or dental hygienist of   procedures:

dental therapist or 

 , dental 



therapist

 

 or a dental therapist 

 or therapist, as applicable,





, dental therapist 

, dental therapist 

, 

dental therapist 

, dental therapist 

 , dental therapist

, dental therapist 

, 

dental therapist 



 dental therapist or





 , dental therapist

(i) 

a dental therapist, 

 , a dental therapist

 a dental therapist,

 , a dental therapist

, a dental therapist 



a dental therapist, 

 dental therapist,

dental therapist or 

dental therapy care or  , as applicable,

dental therapist or 

dental therapist or 

 ,



dental therapist or a 

dental therapists or 

 , dental therapists

 , a dental therapist

 , a 

dental therapist

 , a dental therapist



 dental therapist or

 , dental therapist

 

 , dental therapist



 



italics







For the purposes of section 10 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of 

Nevada 2023, at page 3323 (NRS 631.34583), “bona fide relationship” means a relationship 

between a patient and a licensee where the licensee has: 

 1.  Reviewed the medical records of the patient, including, without limitation: 

 (a) Any relevant information concerning a current illness; and  

 (b) Any diagnostic or radiographic records obtained within the immediately preceding 6 

months; 

 2.  Performed an in-person examination of the patient’s oral cavity within the immediately 

preceding 6 months for the purposes of diagnosing, assessing or determining the current 

medical condition of the patient or reviewed the medical records of such an examination that 

was performed within the immediately preceding 6 months by another licensee; and 

 3.  A reasonable expectation that he or she will provide follow-up care and treatment to 

the patient. 

1.  Subject to the provisions of subsection 3, a licensee may only provide the 

following services through teledentistry: 

 (a) Consultation and recommending treatment. 

 (b) Issuing a prescription that he or she deems necessary to treat an emergent need of the 

patient. 

 (c) Providing a limited diagnosis based on information provided by the patient during a 

visit conducted through teledentistry. 



 (d) Determining the need for orthodontic corrections to address identifiable problems 

related to the malposition of teeth. 

 (e) Correcting the position of teeth using orthodontic appliances. 

 2.  A licensee who provides services through teledentistry shall maintain a list of licensees 

to whom the licensee may refer a patient to receive services in person when necessary in 

accordance with subsection 2 of section 12 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of 

Nevada 2023, at page 3325 (NRS 631.34585). 

 3.  A licensee shall not provide services through teledentistry if the licensee is not 

authorized to provide those services in person. 

 4.  A licensee who issues a prescription through teledentistry shall: 

 (a) Comply with the relevant provisions of chapter 639 of NAC; and  

 (b) Transmit the prescription by telephone or electronic transmission to the pharmacy 

designated by the patient. 

1.  In addition to the information required by section 10 of Assembly Bill No. 

147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3323 (NRS 631.34583), a licensee who is 

seeking informed consent pursuant section 10 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes 

of Nevada 2023, at page 3323 (NRS 631.34583), must provide to the patient or his or her 

parent or guardian, as applicable: 

 (a) A copy of the license issued to the licensee by the Board; 

 (b) The contact information of the licensee and any other licensee providing services to the 

patient through teledentistry, which: 

  (1) May include, without limitation, the electronic mail address and telephone number 

of the licensee and the physical address of the office at which the licensee practices; and 



  (2) Must include information that may be used to contact the licensee in an emergency;  

 (c) A list of the services that the patient may receive through teledentistry and the cost of 

each service; and  

 (d) The actions that the licensee will take in an emergency, including, without limitation, 

the contact information for the medical facility to be used in the event of a medical emergency. 

 2.  Before providing services to a patient through teledentistry, a licensee shall obtain from 

the patient: 

 (a) A signed acknowledgment that the patient received the notice of privacy practices 

required by 45 C.F.R. § 164.520; 

 (b) The relevant medical history of the patient; and 

 (c) If applicable: 

  (1) Information concerning the policy of insurance covering the patient; and  

  (2) A financial agreement for the compensation of the licensee. 

 3.  As used in this section, “medical facility” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 

449.0151. 

1.  A licensee may use teledentistry to collaborate with a physician, physician 

assistant or advanced practice registered nurse, or the designees thereof, for the purposes of: 

 (a) Obtaining the relevant medical history of a patient; or 

 (b) Collaborating on the care of a patient. 

 2.  A licensee may use teledentistry to collaborate with a licensee who does not practice in 

the same specialty area for the purpose of: 

 (a) Obtaining the relevant medical history of a patient;  

 (b) Collaborating on the care of a patient; or 



 (c) Developing a plan for the treatment of a patient. 

 3.  When more than one licensee provides care to the same patient, any licensee who 

provides care to the patient through teledentistry shall: 

 (a) Obtain from the patient, to the extent that the patient is willing to provide such 

information, the names and contact information of the other licensees providing care to the 

patient; and 

 (b) If the patient provides information to the licensee pursuant to paragraph (a): 

  (1) Communicate with the other licensees concerning the relevant medical history and 

care of the patient; and 

  (2) Provide all relevant information and recommendations concerning the care of the 

patient to the other licensees. 

In addition to the requirements of NRS 631.3123, the written practice agreement 

required by NRS 631.3122 between an authorizing dentist and a dental therapist who has not 

completed the hours of clinical practice under the direct supervision of an authorizing dentist 

required by subsection 1 of NRS 631.3122 must include, without limitation: 

 1.  Procedures for the supervision of the dental therapist through teledentistry; or 

2.  A statement that all supervision of the dental therapist will occur in person. 

As used in sections 8 to 11, inclusive, of this regulation, unless the context 

otherwise requires, “special endorsement” means a special endorsement to administer 

immunizations issued pursuant to section 15 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of 

Nevada 2023, at page 3325 (NRS 631.285).

1.  An application for a special endorsement must include, without limitation, 

copies of: 



 (a) The written policies and procedures for the handling and disposal of used or 

contaminated equipment required by paragraph (b) of subsection 1 of section 17 of Assembly 

Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3326 (NRS 631.2851); and 

 (b) The written plan for addressing emergencies required by paragraph (c) of subsection 1 

of section 17 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3326 

(NRS 631.2851). 

 2.  A course of training in the administration of immunizations completed by a dental 

therapist or dental hygienist to satisfy the requirements of section 15 of Assembly Bill No. 147, 

chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3325 (NRS 631.285), must include at least 20 

hours of instruction.  

1.  In addition to complying with the requirements of section 17 of Assembly Bill 

No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3326 (NRS 631.2851), a dentist who 

holds a special endorsement and who administers immunizations, or under whose 

authorization a dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds such an endorsement 

administers immunizations, shall adopt written policies and procedures for the storage of 

immunizations. 

 2.  The written policies, procedures and plans adopted pursuant to this section and section 

17 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3326 (NRS 

631.2851), must comply with all applicable provisions of chapter 639 of NAC. 

1.  A dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special 

endorsement may only administer immunizations for influenza, COVID-19 and human 

papillomavirus. 

 2.  A dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement shall: 



 (a) Notify the primary care provider of the patient, if any, of each dose of an immunization 

that is administered to the patient.  

 (b) Maintain and update at least monthly a log of each immunization administered by the 

dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist, as applicable. 

 3.  A dentist who holds a special endorsement and who administers immunizations, or 

under whose authorization a dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special 

endorsement administers immunizations, shall ensure that the equipment that may be needed 

in an emergency is: 

 (a) Present at the physical location where an immunization is administered and 

immediately accessible, as required by paragraph (c) of subsection 1 of section 17 of Assembly 

Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3326 (NRS 631.2851); and 

 (b) Inspected at least quarterly to ensure that the equipment remains functional. 

 4.  A dental hygienist or a dental therapist may not issue or obtain a standing order for the 

administration of an immunization.  

 5.  As used in this section, “COVID-19” means: 

 (a) The novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-2; 

 (b) Any mutation of the novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-2; or  

 (c) A disease or health condition caused by the novel coronavirus identified as SARS-CoV-

2. 

1.  A dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement must 

annually complete at least 3 hours of continuing education on the administration of 

immunizations and public health emergencies. 



 2.  The continuing education obtained pursuant to subsection 1 may be used to satisfy the 

requirements of subsection 6 of NRS 631.342, as amended by section 24 of Assembly Bill No. 

147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3329. 





 

 (e) Dentist who holds a special endorsement issued pursuant to section 15 of Assembly Bill 

No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3325 (NRS 631.285), shall submit a 

signed, written statement in substantially the following language for each biennium since his 

or her last renewal: 

 

 I, ............, hereby certify to the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada that I have obtained 

the continuing education required by subsection 6 of NRS 631.342, as amended by section 24 

of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3329, during the 

period July 1, ......, through and including June 30, .......... 

 Dated this ........ (day) of ....... (month) of ....... (year) 

 

                       ........................................... 

                        Signature of Dentist 

 

 (f) Dental hygienist or dental therapist who holds a special endorsement issued pursuant to 

section 15 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3325 (NRS 

631.285), shall submit a signed, written statement in substantially the following language for 

each biennium since his or her last renewal: 



 

 I, ............, hereby certify to the Board of Dental Examiners of Nevada that I have obtained 

the continuing education required by subsection 6 of NRS 631.342, as amended by section 24 

of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 3329, and section 11 

of this regulation during the period July 1, ......, through and including June 30, .......... 

 Dated this ........ (day) of ....... (month) of ....... (year) 

 

                       ........................................... 

               Signature of Dental Hygienist or Dental Therapist 

 

 (g) Dentist, dental hygienist or dental therapist who provides dental services through 

teledentistry shall attest that he or she possesses the policy of professional liability insurance 

required by section 8 of Assembly Bill No. 147, chapter 513, Statutes of Nevada 2023, at page 

3323 (NRS 631.34581). 



 





 



 

 (t) The failure of a dentist, dental therapist, dental hygienist or expanded function dental 

assistant to ensure that each medication or immunization in his or her control that is used in 

his or her practice is returned at the end of each day to a specified physical location that is 

safe and appropriate for the storage of the medication or immunization, as applicable. 



 



Review Panel - Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 

Establishment 

Pursuant to the authority of the Board of Dental Examiners (hereinaŌer "the Board"), there 
shall be three (3) Review Panels established to serve as advisory bodies to the full Board on 
complaint adjudicaƟon. 

Purpose 

The purpose of each Review Panel is to: 

 Review iniƟal complaints to determine jurisdicƟon, 

 Conduct a preliminary assessment of established complaints by reviewing the following 
materials: 

o Records and reports submiƩed by the complainant, 

o Records and reports submiƩed by the dental professional, and 

o Preliminary screening consultant's report and findings. 

 Make a formal determinaƟon on the appropriate course of acƟon, which may include: 

o Dismissal or remand of the complaint, 

o ConƟnuaƟon of the complaint for further invesƟgaƟon or monitoring,  

o RecommendaƟon complaint seƩlement criteria, or 

o RecommendaƟon for adjudicaƟon through formal Board acƟon. 

 

Membership 

1. Each Review Panel shall consist of three (3) members, composed as follows: 
a. One (1) member of the Board who is a licensed dentist, 
b. One (1) member of the Board who is a licensed dental hygienist, 
c. One (1) licensed dentist who is not a member of the Board. 

2. The Board President appoints a Chair to each Review Panel at the 1st or 2nd board 
meeƟng of the calendar year. 

3. The Board President appoints Review Panel Members to serve at the 1st or 2nd board 
meeƟng of the calendar year and voted on by the Board. 



4. Any Review Panel Member may consult with the Board President to discuss the removal 
of any Review Panel Member from the Review Panel for acƟons that are unethical and 
/or result in unprofessional conduct.  

MeeƟngs 

1. Each Review Panel shall meet no fewer than six (6) Ɵmes per calendar year. AddiƟonal 
meeƟngs may be scheduled as needed based on the volume of complaints or urgency of 
maƩers. 

2. All Review Panel Members must be present for the review panel to conduct business. 
3. All records, reports, and proceedings of the Review Panels shall remain confidenƟal in 

accordance with applicable laws and regulaƟons. Members shall be required to maintain 
confidenƟality. 

Authority and ResponsibiliƟes 

1. The Review Panels are authorized to recommend, but not to independently impose 
disciplinary acƟons. Their findings are advisory and subject to review and final acƟon by 
the full Board. 

2. All records, reports, and proceedings of the Review Panels shall remain confidenƟal in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulaƟons. Members shall be required to maintain 
confidenƟality. 

ReporƟng and RecommendaƟons 

1. Each Review Panel shall report its findings and recommendaƟons to the full Board for 
final determinaƟon or further acƟon as required by law. 

Amendments 

These bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board, provided that noƟce of 
proposed amendments is given in advance. 

EffecƟve Date 

These bylaws shall take effect immediately upon approval by the Board of Dental Examiners. 



 



Board Composition and Term Schedule - Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners 

Board Composition 

The Board shall consist of eleven (11) members appointed in accordance with applicable state laws. The 
membership shall include: 

 Six (6) licensed dentists, 

 Three (3) licensed dental hygienists or dental therapists, 

 One (1) representative of the interests of persons or agencies that regularly provide health care 
to patients who are indigent, uninsured, or unable to afford health care, and 

 One (1) representative of the general public who is not licensed or employed in any capacity 
related to the practice of dentistry or dental hygiene. 

The geographic representation of these members shall be as follows: 

 Of the six (6) licensed dentists, the one (1) health care representative, and the one (1) public 
member: 

o Three (3) must be appointed from Carson City, Douglas County, or Washoe County, 

o Four (4) must be appointed from Clark County, and 

o One (1) may be appointed from any county in the State. 

 Of the three (3) licensed dental hygienists or dental therapists: 

o One (1) must be appointed from Carson City, Douglas County, or Washoe County, 

o One (1) must be appointed from Clark County, and 

o One (1) may be appointed from any county in the State. 

Appointment Authority 

All members of the Board shall be appointed by the Governor of the State of Nevada. Appointments 
shall be made in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) Chapter 631 and any other applicable 
laws governing appointments to regulatory boards. 

Qualifications and Terms 

Board members must meet all eligibility requirements established by law at the time of appointment 
and shall serve terms as defined by NRS 631.100. Board Members may not serve more than three (3), 
three (3) year terms.  

 



 



Board Member Vacancies and Expired Terms - Nevada State Board of Dental 
Examiners 

Vacancies on Unexpired Terms 
 

In the event of a vacancy on the Board due to resignation, removal, death, or any other cause before the 
expiration of a member’s term, the Executive Director shall report the vacancy to the Office of the 
Governor within ten (10) calendar days of the vacancy becoming known. The Board shall await a new 
appointment by the Governor to fill the remainder of the unexpired term. 

Expired Terms 
 

When a Board member’s term has expired and no successor has yet been appointed, the Executive 
Director shall notify the Office of the Governor of the expired term within thirty (30) calendar days of 
the term’s expiration date. 

Service During Expired Terms 
 

A Board member whose term has expired shall continue to serve in their full capacity until a successor is 
appointed and qualified, unless otherwise directed by the Governor or prohibited by law. 

 



 





 







 







 



Cu
st

om
er

:
St

at
e 

of
 N

V 
- O

ffi
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

IO
 - 

CS
U

Sh
ip

 to
 A

dd
re

ss
:

26
51

 N
 G

re
en

 V
al

le
y 

Su
ite

 1
04

La
s V

eg
as

 N
V 

89
01

4

Bi
ll 

to
 A

dd
re

ss
:

26
51

 N
 G

re
en

 V
al

le
y 

Su
ite

 1
04

La
s V

eg
as

 N
V 

89
01

4
Am

pl
ify

 | 
SI

 R
ep

:
Ry

an
 N

el
so

n
Q

uo
te

 C
on

ta
ct

:
Jo

na
th

on
 L

ee
s

Em
ai

l:
sa

le
s@

am
pl

ify
si.

co
m

Em
ai

l:
jcl

ee
s@

it.
nv

.g
ov

Ph
on

e:
80

1-
20

9-
16

91

Li
ne

.
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

(y
rs

)
Q

ty
.

Es
tim

at
ed

 L
ea

d 
Ti

m
e(

D
ay

s)
U

ni
t N

et
 P

ric
e

Ex
te

nd
ed

 N
et

 P
ric

e

C9
20

0-
24

P-
E

00
1

C9
20

0-
24

P-
E

1
14

$2
,3

18
.4

6
$2

,3
18

.4
6

00
2

CO
N

-S
N

T-
C9

20
02

4P
5

1
$1

,1
88

.0
0

$1
,1

88
.0

0

00
3

C9
20

0-
DN

A-
E-

24
1

14
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

00
4

C9
20

0-
DN

A-
E-

24
-5

Y
5

1
$6

75
.9

3
$6

75
.9

3

00
5

C9
20

0-
N

W
-E

-2
4

1
14

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

00
6

C9
20

0-
N

M
-4

X
1

14
$1

,5
05

.4
9

$1
,5

05
.4

9

00
7

PW
R-

C6
-6

00
W

AC
/2

1
14

$9
48

.2
4

$9
48

.2
4

00
8

CA
B-

TA
-N

A
2

14
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

00
9

C9
K-

AC
C-

RB
FT

1
14

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

01
0

C9
K-

AC
C-

SC
R-

4
1

14
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

01
1

CA
B-

GU
ID

E-
1R

U
1

14
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

01
2

N
ET

W
O

RK
-P

N
P-

LI
C

1
3

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

Su
bt

ot
al

 C
92

00
-2

4P
-E

$6
,6

36
.1

2

1R
U 

CA
BL

E 
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T 
GU

ID
ES

 9
20

0 
an

d 
93

00

N
et

w
or

k 
Pl

ug
-n

-P
la

y 
Co

nn
ec

t f
or

 z
er

o-
to

uc
h 

de
vic

e 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t

Ca
ta

ly
st

 9
20

0 
4 

x 
10

G 
N

et
wo

rk
 M

od
ul

e

60
0W

 A
C 

Co
nf

ig
 6

 P
ow

er
 S

up
pl

y 
- S

ec
on

da
ry

 P
ow

er
 S

up
pl

y

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica
 A

C 
Ty

pe
 A

 P
ow

er
 C

ab
le

RU
BB

ER
 F

EE
T 

FO
R 

TA
BL

E 
TO

P 
SE

TU
P 

92
00

 a
nd

 9
30

0

12
-2

4 
an

d 
10

-3
2 

SC
RE

W
S 

FO
R 

RA
CK

 IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N
, Q

TY
 4

Ca
ta

ly
st

 9
20

0 
24

-p
or

t P
oE

+,
 N

et
wo

rk
 E

ss
en

tia
ls

SN
TC

-8
X5

XN
BD

 C
at

al
ys

t 9
20

0 
24

-p
or

t P
oE

+,
 N

et
wo

rk
 E

ss
e

C9
20

0 
Ci

sc
o 

DN
A 

Es
se

nt
ia

ls,
 2

4-
Po

rt 
Te

rm
 L

ice
ns

es

C9
20

0 
Ci

sc
o 

DN
A 

Es
se

nt
ia

ls,
 2

4-
Po

rt,
 5

 Y
ea

r T
er

m
 L

ice
ns

e

C9
20

0 
N

et
wo

rk
 E

ss
en

tia
ls,

 2
4-

po
rt 

lic
en

se

D
AT

E:
 0

5/
14

/2
02

5

Q
U

O
TE

 #
 Q

T-
00

00
01

15
2

Am
pl

ify
 | 

SI
20

04
 S

 8
00

 E
Sa

lt 
La

ke
 C

ity
, U

T 
84

10
5

Q
uo

te
 S

um
m

ar
y

St
at

e 
of

 N
V 

O
CI

O
 - 

O
pt

 1
 fo

r B
oa

rd
 o

f D
en

ta
l E

xa
m

in
er

s

CO
N

TR
AC

T:
 P

ric
in

g,
 T

er
m

s a
nd

 C
on

di
tio

ns
 a

re
 

go
ve

rn
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

N
AS

PO
 M

as
te

r A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 N
o.

 A
R3

22
7 

an
d 

th
e 

N
ev

ad
a 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
Ad

de
nd

um
 9

9S
W

C-
N

V2
0-

44
47

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2



Li
ne

.
Ite

m
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

(y
rs

)
Q

ty
.

Es
tim

at
ed

 L
ea

d 
Ti

m
e(

D
ay

s)
U

ni
t N

et
 P

ric
e

Ex
te

nd
ed

 N
et

 P
ric

e

M
R3

6-
H

W
01

3
M

R3
6-

HW
1

1
$4

46
.4

9
$4

46
.4

9

Su
bt

ot
al

 M
R3

6-
H

W
$4

46
.4

9

LI
C-

EN
T-

5Y
R

01
4

LI
C-

EN
T-

5Y
R

1
$4

21
.4

7
$4

21
.4

7

Su
bt

ot
al

 L
IC

-E
N

T-
5Y

R
$4

21
.4

7

GL
C-

TE
=

01
5

GL
C-

TE
=

2
17

$3
11

.9
3

$6
23

.8
6

Su
bt

ot
al

 G
LC

-T
E=

$6
23

.8
6

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Se

ct
io

n

H
AR

D
W

AR
E 

:
$5

,8
42

.5
4

SO
FT

W
AR

E 
+S

AA
S:

$1
,0

97
.4

0
SE

RV
IC

E 
/ M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

:
$1

,1
88

.0
0

GR
AN

D
 T

O
TA

L
$8

,1
27

.9
4

M
er

ak
i M

R3
6 

W
i-F

i 6
 In

do
or

 A
P

M
er

ak
i M

R 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Li
ce

ns
e,

 5
YR

10
00

BA
SE

-T
 S

FP
 tr

an
sc

ei
ve

r m
od

ul
e 

fo
r C

at
eg

or
y 

5 
co

pp
er

 w
ire

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2



 



Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

ANNA GRIMLEY,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 
you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 
the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 
processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

PLBC868 5/12/2025 DENTAL EXAMINERS 25001923 $640.71

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Tripp Lite Cat6 Gigabit Snagless Molded Patch Cable (RJ45 M 
M) Blue, 3'

24 415020 $4.23 $101.52

Mfg. Part#: N201-003-BL

UNSPSC: 26121609

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions - State of NV (2018011)

Tripp Lite Cat6 Gigabit Snagless Molded Patch Cable (RJ45 M 
M) Blue, 5'

24 514240 $5.08 $121.92

Mfg. Part#: N201-005-BL

UNSPSC: 26121609

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions - State of NV (2018011)

PANDUIT PatchLink Horizontal Cable Manager 2 1686690 $50.86 $101.72

Mfg. Part#: WMPFSE

UNSPSC: 26121668

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions - State of NV (2018011)

Tripp Lite UPS Smart LCD 1500VA 900W AVR 2U Rack Tower 
120V 8 Outlets LCD

1 892647 $315.55 $315.55

Mfg. Part#: SMART1500LCD

UNSPSC: 26111701

Contract: National IPA Technology Solutions - State of NV (2018011)

SUBTOTAL $640.71

SHIPPING $0.00

SALES TAX $0.00

GRAND TOTAL $640.71

PURCHASER BILLING INFO DELIVER TO





 







 







 









 











 











 













 











 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 1 of 9 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
A Contract Between the State of Nevada 

Acting by and Through its 
 

Agency Name: Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners 

Address: 2651 N. Green Valley Parkway, Suite 104 
City, State, Zip Code: Henderson, Nevada 89014 
Contact: A.L. Higginbotham 
Phone: 702-486-7044 
Fax: 702-486-7046 
Email: ahigginbotham@dental.nv.gov 

  

Contractor Name: Dr. Helen Kanian | Temporary Infection Control Program Developer 

Address:  
City, State, Zip Code:  
Contact:  
Phone:  
Fax: NA 
Email:  

 
WHEREAS, NRS 333.700 authorizes officers, departments, institutions, boards, commissions, and other agencies in the 
Executive Department of the State Government which derive their support from public money in whole or in part to engage, 
subject to the approval of the Board of Examiners (BOE), services of persons as independent contractors; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is deemed that the service of Contractor is both necessary and in the best interests of the State of Nevada. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. REQUIRED APPROVAL.  This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by the Nevada State 

Board of Examiners. 
 
2. DEFINITIONS. 
 

A. “State” – means the State of Nevada and any State agency identified herein, its officers, employees and immune 
contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307. 

 
B. “Contracting Agency” – means the State agency identified above.  

 
C. “Contractor” – means the person or entity identified above that performs services and/or provides goods for the State 

under the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. 
 

D. “Fiscal Year” – means the period beginning July 1st and ending June 30th of the following year. 
 

E.    “Contract” – Unless the context otherwise requires, “Contract” means this document entitled Contract for Services 
of Independent Contractor and all Attachments or Incorporated Documents. 

 
F.    “Contract for Independent Contractor” – means this document entitled Contract for Services of Independent 

Contractor exclusive of any Attachments or Incorporated Documents. 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 2 of 9 

3. CONTRACT TERM.  This Contract shall be effective as noted below, unless sooner terminated by either party as 
specified in Section 10, Contract Termination.  Contract is subject to Board of Examiners’ approval. 

 

Effective from: August 1, 2025 To: January 31, 2026 

 
4. NOTICE.  All communications, including notices, required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall be in writing 

and directed to the parties at the addresses stated above. Notices may be given: (i) by delivery in person; (ii) by a nationally 
recognized next-day courier service, return receipt requested; or (iii) by certified mail, return receipt requested.  If 
specifically requested by the party to be notified, valid notice may be given by facsimile transmission or electronic mail 
to the address(es) such party has specified in writing.  

 
5. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS.  The parties agree that this Contract, inclusive of the following attachments, 

specifically describes the scope of work.  This Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of 
constructive precedence: 

 

ATTACHMENT AA: SCOPE OF WORK, DELIVERABLES, PAYMENT SCHEDULE, and 
NEGOTIATED POINTS (if needed) 

ATTACHMENT BB: INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

ATTACHMENT CC: STATE SOLICITATION # and AMENDMENTS # 

ATTACHMENT DD: VENDOR PROPOSAL 

 
Any provision, term or condition of an Attachment that contradicts the terms of this Contract for Independent Contractor, 
or that would change the obligations of the State under this Contract for Independent Contractor, shall be void and 
unenforceable. 

 
6. CONSIDERATION.  The parties agree that Contractor will provide the services specified in Section 5, Incorporated 

Documents at a cost as noted below:  
 

$ 
53 
 

per Hour 
 

 

Total Contract or installments payable at: Bi-Monthly  

 

Total Contract Not to Exceed: $25000 

 
The State does not agree to reimburse Contractor for expenses unless otherwise specified in the incorporated attachments.  
Any intervening end to a biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the overall 
Contract term) or a termination as the result of legislative appropriation may require. 

 
7. ASSENT.  The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this Contract are also 

specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of precedence and any limitations 
specified. 

 
8. BILLING SUBMISSION: TIMELINESS.  The parties agree that timeliness of billing is of the essence to the Contract 

and recognize that the State is on a Fiscal Year.  All billings for dates of service prior to July 1 must be submitted to the 
state no later than the first Friday in August of the same calendar year.  A billing submitted after the first Friday in August, 
which forces the State to process the billing as a stale claim pursuant to NRS 353.097, will subject Contractor to an 
administrative fee not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00).  The parties hereby agree this is a reasonable estimate of 
the additional costs to the state of processing the billing as a stale claim and that this amount will be deducted from the 
stale claim payment due to Contractor. 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 3 of 9 

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT. 
 

A. Books and Records.  Contractor agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
full, true and complete records, contracts, books, and documents as are necessary to fully disclose to the State or 
United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient information to 
determine compliance with all State and federal regulations and statutes. 

 
B. Inspection & Audit.  Contractor agrees that the relevant  books, records (written, electronic, computer related or 

otherwise), including, without limitation, relevant accounting procedures and practices of Contractor or its 
subcontractors, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product 
shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or location 
of Contractor where such records may be found, with or without notice by the State Auditor, the relevant State agency 
or its contracted examiners, the department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General’s 
Office or its Fraud Control Units, the state Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding, the relevant 
federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any 
of their authorized representatives.  All subcontracts shall reflect requirements of this Section. 

 
C. Period of Retention.  All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be retained a minimum 

three (3) years, and for five (5) years if any federal funds are used pursuant to the Contract.  The retention period runs 
from the date of payment for the relevant goods or services by the state, or from the date of termination of the Contract, 
whichever is later.  Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably 
necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue. 

 
10. CONTRACT TERMINATION. 
 

A. Termination Without Cause.  Regardless of any terms to the contrary, this Contract may be terminated upon written 
notice by mutual consent of both parties. The State unilaterally may terminate this contract without cause by giving 
not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in the manner specified in Section 4, Notice. If this Contract is unilaterally 
terminated by the State, Contractor shall use its best efforts to minimize cost to the State and Contractor will not be 
paid for any cost that Contractor could have avoided.  

 
B. State Termination for Non-Appropriation.  The continuation of this Contract beyond the current biennium is subject 

to and contingent upon sufficient funds being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available by the State 
Legislature and/or federal sources.  The State may terminate this Contract, and Contractor waives any and all claims(s) 
for damages, effective immediately upon receipt of written notice (or any date specified therein) if for any reason the 
contracting Agency’s funding from State and/or federal sources is not appropriated or is withdrawn, limited, or 
impaired. 

 
C. Termination with Cause for Breach.  A breach may be declared with or without termination.  A notice of breach and 

termination shall specify the date of termination of the Contract, which shall not be sooner than the expiration of the 
Time to Correct, if applicable, allowed under subsection 10D. This Contract may be terminated by either party upon 
written notice of breach to the other party on the following grounds: 

 
1) If Contractor fails to provide or satisfactorily perform any of the conditions, work, deliverables, goods, or services 

called for by this Contract within the time requirements specified in this Contract or within any granted extension 
of those time requirements; or 

 
2) If any state, county, city, or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit, qualification or certification required 

by statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Contractor to provide the goods or services required by this 
Contract is for any reason denied, revoked, debarred, excluded, terminated, suspended, lapsed, or not renewed; 
or 

 
3) If Contractor becomes insolvent, subject to receivership, or becomes voluntarily or involuntarily subject to the 

jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court; or 
 

4) If the State materially breaches any material duty under this Contract and any such breach impairs Contractor’s 
ability to perform; or 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 4 of 9 

 
5) If it is found by the State that any quid pro quo or gratuities in the form of money, services, entertainment, gifts, 

or otherwise were offered or given by Contractor, or any agent or representative of Contractor, to any officer or 
employee of the State of Nevada with a view toward securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with 
respect to awarding, extending, amending, or making any determination with respect to the performing of such 
contract; or 

 
6) If it is found by the State that Contractor has failed to disclose any material conflict of interest relative to the 

performance of this Contract. 
 

D. Time to Correct.  Unless the breach is not curable, or unless circumstances do not permit an opportunity to cure, 
termination upon declared breach may be exercised only after service of formal written notice as specified in Section 
4, Notice, and the subsequent failure of the breaching party within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of that notice 
to provide evidence, satisfactory to the aggrieved party, showing that the declared breach has been corrected. Upon a 
notice of breach, the time to correct and the time for termination of the contract upon breach under subsection 10C, 
above, shall run concurrently, unless the notice expressly states otherwise.  

 
E.     Winding Up Affairs Upon Termination.  In the event of termination of this Contract for any reason, the parties 

agree that the provisions of this Section survive termination: 
 

1) The parties shall account for and properly present to each other all claims for fees and expenses and pay those 
which are undisputed and otherwise not subject to set off under this Contract.  Neither party may withhold 
performance of winding up provisions solely based on nonpayment of fees or expenses accrued up to the time of 
termination; 
 

2) Contractor shall satisfactorily complete work in progress at the agreed rate (or a pro rata basis if necessary) if so 
requested by the Contracting Agency; 
 

3) Contractor shall execute any documents and take any actions necessary to effectuate an assignment of this 
Contract if so requested by the Contracting Agency; 

 
4) Contractor shall preserve, protect and promptly deliver into State possession all proprietary information in 

accordance with Section 21, State Ownership of Proprietary Information. 
 
11. REMEDIES.  Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the parties shall not 

be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including, without limitation, 
actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.  For purposes of an award of attorneys’ 
fees to either party, the parties stipulate and agree that a reasonable hourly rate of attorneys’ fees shall be one hundred and 
fifty dollars ($150.00) per hour. The State may set off consideration against any unpaid obligation of Contractor to any 
State agency in accordance with NRS 353C.190.  In the event that Contractor voluntarily or involuntarily becomes subject 
to the jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court, the State may set off consideration against any unpaid obligation of Contractor 
to the State or its agencies, to the extent allowed by bankruptcy law, without regard to whether the procedures of NRS 
353C.190 have been utilized. 

 
12. LIMITED LIABILITY.  The State will not waive and intends to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations in 

all cases.  Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages.  Damages for any State breach shall 
never exceed the amount of funds appropriated for payment under this Contract, but not yet paid to Contractor, for the 
Fiscal Year budget in existence at the time of the breach.  Contractor’s tort liability shall not be limited. 

 
13. FORCE MAJEURE.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from performing 

any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military authority, act of public 
enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms.  In 
such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the excused 
party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause ceases. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND DEFENSE.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, hold 
harmless and defend, not excluding the State’s right to participate, the State from and against all liability, claims, actions, 
damages, losses, and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of any 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 5 of 9 

breach of the obligations of Contractor under this contract, or any alleged negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
Contractor, its officers, employees and agents.  Contractor’s obligation to indemnify the State shall apply in all cases 
except for claims arising solely from the State’s own negligence or willful misconduct.  Contractor waives any rights of 
subrogation against the State.  Contractor’s duty to defend begins when the State requests defense of any claim arising 
from this Contract. 

 
15. REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  Contractor represents that it is 

an independent contractor, as defined in NRS 333.700(2) and 616A.255, warrants that it will perform all work under this 
contract as an independent contractor, and warrants that the State of Nevada will not incur any employment liability by 
reason of this Contract or the work to be performed under this Contract. To the extent the State incurs any employment 
liability for the work under this Contract; Contractor will reimburse the State for that liability.  

 
16. INSURANCE SCHEDULE.  Unless expressly waived in writing by the State, Contractor must carry policies of insurance 

and pay all taxes and fees incident hereunto.  Policies shall meet the terms and conditions as specified within this Contract 
along with the additional limits and provisions as described in Attachment BB, incorporated hereto by attachment.  The 
State shall have no liability except as specifically provided in the Contract. 

 
Contractor shall not commence work before Contractor has provided the required evidence of insurance to the Contracting 
Agency.  The State’s approval of any changes to insurance coverage during the course of performance shall constitute an 
ongoing condition subsequent to this Contract.  Any failure of the State to timely approve shall not constitute a waiver of 
the condition. 

 
A. Insurance Coverage.  Contractor shall, at Contractor’s sole expense, procure, maintain and keep in force for the 

duration of the Contract insurance conforming to the minimum limits as specified in Attachment BB, incorporated 
hereto by attachment.  Unless specifically stated herein or otherwise agreed to by the State, the required insurance 
shall be in effect prior to the commencement of work by Contractor and shall continue in force as appropriate until: 

 
1) Final acceptance by the State of the completion of this Contract; or 
2) Such time as the insurance is no longer required by the State under the terms of this Contract; whichever occurs 

later. 
 

Any insurance or self-insurance available to the State shall be in excess of and non-contributing with, any insurance 
required from Contractor.  Contractor’s insurance policies shall apply on a primary basis.  Until such time as the 
insurance is no longer required by the State, Contractor shall provide the State with renewal or replacement evidence 
of insurance no less than thirty (30) days before the expiration or replacement of the required insurance.  If at any 
time during the period when insurance is required by the Contract, an insurer or surety shall fail to comply with the 
requirements of this Contract, as soon as Contractor has knowledge of any such failure, Contractor shall immediately 
notify the State and immediately replace such insurance or bond with an insurer meeting the requirements. 

 
B. General Requirements.   

 
1) Additional Insured:  By endorsement to the general liability insurance policy, the State of Nevada, its officers, 

employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 shall be named as additional insureds for all 
liability arising from the Contract. 

 
2) Waiver of Subrogation:  Each insurance policy shall provide for a waiver of subrogation against the State of 

Nevada, its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 for losses arising from 
work/materials/equipment performed or provided by or on behalf of Contractor. 

 
3) Cross Liability:  All required liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as would be achieved under 

the standard ISO separation of insureds clause. 
 

4) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Insurance maintained by Contractor shall apply on a first dollar basis 
without application of a deductible or self-insured retention unless otherwise specifically agreed to by the State.  
Such approval shall not relieve Contractor from the obligation to pay any deductible or self-insured retention.  
Any deductible or self-insured retention shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) per occurrence, 
unless otherwise approved by the Risk Management Division. 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 6 of 9 

 
5) Policy Cancellation:  Except for ten (10) days notice for non-payment of premiums, each insurance policy shall 

be endorsed to state that without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the State of Nevada, c/o Contracting 
Agency, the policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed or coverage and/or limits reduced or materially altered, 
and shall provide that notices required by this Section shall be sent by certified mail to the address shown on page 
one (1) of this contract. 

 
6) Approved Insurer:  Each insurance policy shall be: 

 
a) Issued by insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Nevada or eligible surplus lines 

insurers acceptable to the State and having agents in Nevada upon whom service of process may be made; 
and 

 
b) Currently rated by A.M. Best as “A-VII” or better. 

 
C. Evidence of Insurance.   

 
Prior to the start of any work, Contractor must provide the following documents to the contracting State agency: 

 
1) Certificate of Insurance:  The Acord 25 Certificate of Insurance form or a form substantially similar must be 

submitted to the State to evidence the insurance policies and coverages required of Contractor.  The certificate 
must name the State of Nevada, its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307 as 
the certificate holder.  The certificate should be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on 
its behalf.  The State project/Contract number; description and Contract effective dates shall be noted on the 
certificate, and upon renewal of the policies listed, Contractor shall furnish the State with replacement certificates 
as described within Section 16A, Insurance Coverage. 

 
Mail all required insurance documents to the State Contracting Agency identified on Page one of the 
Contract. 

 
2) Additional Insured Endorsement:  An Additional Insured Endorsement (CG 20 10 11 85 or CG 20 26 11 85), 

signed by an authorized insurance company representative, must be submitted to the State to evidence the 
endorsement of the State as an additional insured per Section 16B, General Requirements. 

 
3) Schedule of Underlying Insurance Policies:  If Umbrella or Excess policy is evidenced to comply with minimum 

limits, a copy of the underlying Schedule from the Umbrella or Excess insurance policy may be required. 
 

4) Review and Approval:  Documents specified above must be submitted for review and approval by the State prior 
to the commencement of work by Contractor.  Neither approval by the State nor failure to disapprove the 
insurance furnished by Contractor shall relieve Contractor of Contractor’s full responsibility to provide the 
insurance required by this Contract.  Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract shall not limit 
the liability of Contractor or its subcontractors, employees or agents to the State or others, and shall be in 
additional to and not in lieu of any other remedy available to the State under this Contract or otherwise.  The 
State reserves the right to request and review a copy of any required insurance policy or endorsement to assure 
compliance with these requirements. 

 
17. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGAL OBLIGATIONS.  Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this 

Contract any state, county, city or federal license, authorization, waiver, permit qualification or certification required by 
statute, ordinance, law, or regulation to be held by Contractor to provide the goods or services required by this Contract.  
Contractor shall provide proof of its compliance upon request of the Contracting Agency.  Contractor will be responsible 
to pay all taxes, assessments, fees, premiums, permits, and licenses required by law.  Real property and personal property 
taxes are the responsibility of Contractor in accordance with NRS 361.157 and NRS 361.159.  Contractor agrees to be 
responsible for payment of any such government obligations not paid by its subcontractors during performance of this 
Contract. 
 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 7 of 9 

18. WAIVER OF BREACH.  Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the Contract or its 
material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as 
to any other breach. 

 
19. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or equity, 

this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision shall not be 
held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable. 

 
20. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION.  To the extent that any assignment of any right under this Contract changes the duty 

of either party, increases the burden or risk involved, impairs the chances of obtaining the performance of this Contract, 
attempts to operate as a novation, or includes a waiver or abrogation of any defense to payment by State, such offending 
portion of the assignment shall be void, and shall be a breach of this Contract.  Contractor shall neither assign, transfer 
nor delegate any rights, obligations nor duties under this Contract without the prior written consent of the State. 

 
21. STATE OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.  Any data or information provided by the State to 

Contractor and any documents or materials provided by the State to Contractor in the course of this Contract (“State 
Materials”) shall be and remain the exclusive property of the State and all such State Materials shall be delivered into State 
possession by Contractor upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this Contract. 

 
22. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents received from Contractor may be open to 

public inspection and copying.  The State has a legal obligation to disclose such information unless a particular record is 
made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.  Contractor may label specific parts of an individual 
document as a “trade secret” or “confidential” in accordance with NRS 333.333, provided that Contractor thereby agrees 
to indemnify and defend the State for honoring such a designation.  The failure to so label any document that is released 
by the State shall constitute a complete waiver of any and all claims for damages caused by any release of the records. 

 
23. CONFIDENTIALITY.  Contractor shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced, prepared, 

observed or received by Contractor to the extent that such information is confidential by law or otherwise required by this 
Contract. 

 
24. FEDERAL FUNDING.  In the event federal funds are used for payment of all or part of this Contract, Contractor agrees 

to comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations and executive orders, including, without limitation the following: 
 

A. Contractor certifies, by signing this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any 
federal department or agency.  This certification is made pursuant to Executive Orders 12549 and 12689 and Federal 
Acquisition Regulation subpart 9.4, and any relevant program-specific regulations.  This provision shall be required 
of every subcontractor receiving any payment in whole or in part from federal funds. 

 
B. Contractor and its subcontracts shall comply with all terms, conditions, and requirements of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act of 1990 (P.L. 101-136), 42 U.S.C. 12101, as amended, and regulations adopted thereunder, including 
28 C.F.R. Section 35, inclusive, and any relevant program-specific regulations. 

 
C. Contractor and it subcontractors shall comply with the requirements of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352), as 

amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-112), as amended, and any relevant program-specific regulations, 
and shall not discriminate against any employee or offeror for employment because of race, national origin, creed, 
color, sex, religion, age, disability or handicap condition (including AIDS and AIDS-related conditions.) 

 
25. LOBBYING.  The parties agree, whether expressly prohibited by federal law, or otherwise, that no funding associated 

with this Contract will be used for any purpose associated with or related to lobbying or influencing or attempting to lobby 
or influence for any purpose the following: 

 
A. Any federal, state, county or local agency, legislature, commission, council or board; 

 
B. Any federal, state, county or local legislator, commission member, council member, board member, or other elected 

official; or 
 



CETS# 

RFP# 

  

Form Provided by the Attorney General of the State of Nevada  Effective 02/2017 – Reformatted:  03/2020  Page 8 of 9 

C. Any officer or employee of any federal, state, county or local agency; legislature, commission, council or board. 
 
26. GENERAL WARRANTY. Contractor warrants that all services, deliverables, and/or work products under this Contract 

shall be completed in a workmanlike manner consistent with standards in the trade, profession, or industry; shall conform 
to or exceed the specifications set forth in the incorporated attachments; and shall be fit for ordinary use, of good quality, 
with no material defects. 

 
27. PROPER AUTHORITY.  The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on behalf of 

each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that as required by statute or 
regulation this Contract is effective only after approval by the State Board of Examiners and only for the period of time 
specified in the Contract.  Any services performed by Contractor before this Contract is effective or after it ceases to be 
effective are performed at the sole risk of Contractor. 

 
28. DISCLOSURES REGARDING CURRENT OR FORMER STATE EMPLOYEES.  For the purpose of State 

compliance with NRS 333.705, Contractor represents and warrants that if Contractor, or any employee of Contractor who 
will be performing services under this Contract, is a current employee of the State or was employed by the State within 
the preceding 24 months, Contractor has disclosed the identity of such persons, and the services that each such person will 
perform, to the Contracting Agency. 

 
29. ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST CLAIMS.  Contractor irrevocably assigns to the State any claim for relief or cause 

of action which Contractor now has or which may accrue to Contractor in the future by reason of any violation of State of 
Nevada or federal antitrust laws in connection with any goods or services provided under this Contract. 

 
30. GOVERNING LAW:  JURISDICTION.  This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be 

governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada, without giving effect to any principle of conflict-
of-law that would require the application of the law of any other jurisdiction.  The parties consent to the exclusive 
jurisdiction of and venue in the First Judicial District Court, Carson City, Nevada for enforcement of this Contract, and 
consent to personal jurisdiction in such court for any action or proceeding arising out of this Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31. ENTIRE CONTRACT AND MODIFICATION.  This Contract and its integrated attachment(s) constitute the entire 

agreement of the parties and as such are intended to be the complete and exclusive statement of the promises, 
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject 
matter hereof.  Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a particular 
part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and this Contract shall be construed 
consistent with the terms of this Contract.  Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no 





 



Attachment AA 

Temporary Infec on Control Program Developer 

Posi on Type: Temporary (EsƟmated 3-6 Months) 
 

Job Summary: 

The Nevada Board of Dental Examiners seeks a Temporary InfecƟon Control Program Specialist 
to establish a comprehensive infecƟon control program. This role will focus on developing 
standardized inspecƟon checklists, procedures, and enforcement protocols to ensure 
compliance with NRS 631 and NAC 631 while integraƟng appropriate CDC guidelines. The 
specialist will collaborate with board members, staff, and stakeholders to create an effecƟve 
inspecƟon and enforcement framework. 

Key Responsibili es: 

1. Update the Infec on Control Inspec on Checklist 
a. Ensure alignment with NRS 631 and NAC 631 regulaƟons. 
b. Clearly differenƟate Board laws and regulaƟons from CDC guidelines for clarity. 
c. Present the revised checklist to the Board and InfecƟon Control CommiƩee for 

review and approval. 
2. Develop Inspec on Procedure Guides & Opera ng Procedures 

a. Create a detailed inspecƟon guide that outlines procedures from start to finish. 
b. Develop a standardized approach for addressing dental faciliƟes that fail an 

infecƟon control inspecƟon. 
3. Par cipate in Commi ee and Board Mee ngs 

a. Communicate the need for updates to the inspecƟon checklist. 
b. Provide progress reports and gather input on the development of inspecƟon and 

enforcement procedures. 
4. Develop Mul ple Inspec on Procedures 

a. Establish procedures for various types of inspecƟons, including:  
i. Opening inspecƟons for new dental faciliƟes. 

ii. Random inspecƟons for ongoing compliance. 
iii. Re-inspecƟons for failed faciliƟes. 
iv. Complaint-driven inspecƟons triggered by public or pracƟƟoner 

complaints. 
v. Mobile / pop-up dental clinic inspecƟons. 

5. Develop Immediate Closure & Emergency Enforcement Procedures 





 



ATTACHMENT BB 

 

BOARD AGENTS – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

 

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners does not require insurance for the Temporary 

Infection Control Program Developer.  

 

 



 



ATTACHMENT CC 

 

BOARD AGENTS – STATE SOLICITATION # & AMENDMENTS # 

 

The Nevada State Board of Dental Examiners utilizes trained medical professionals as Board 

Agents to carry out the provisions of NRS 631. Solicitation materials are not applicable due to 

the utilization of trained medical professionals. Contracts for professional services explicitly 

listed in NAC 333.150(2)(b) where the referenced licensure or professional certification is a 

requirement of the service to be provided, including (1) expert witness, (2) professional engineer, 

(3) registered architect, (4) attorney, or (5) accountant exclusively, are not adapted to award by 

competitive selection; a State Purchasing authorized Solicitation Wavier is not required. 

 

Additionally, the service contracts with an estimated value below the limit established in NAC 

333.150(3) of $25,000.00 per fiscal year are awarded by using agencies; State Purchasing does 

not consider Solicitation Waivers for contracts below the limit. The current contract limit is not 

to exceed $25,000.00 per fiscal year. 

 



 



ATTACHMENT DD 

 

BOARD AGENTS – VENDOR PROPOSAL 

 

NA 

 



 





 08/2016 – 01/2019
City of Portland PPortland City Attorney’s Office





Appellate role- Reviewed proposed orders and opinions for legal
accuracy, correct citation form, proper grammar and ease of
reading; conducted research to verify law clerks' analysis; made
suggestions to Justices and law clerks regarding improvements to
their documents; read all parties’ briefs in assigned cases to
ascertain the issues, then decided whether the case en
banc, panel, or staff assignment current Nevada
precedent ; drafted proposed orders and legal memoranda
for consideration by the Justices.
Attorney ethics role- received and reviewed attorney discipline
prosecutions from the State Bar, analyzed mitigating and
aggravating factors, compared conduct to ethics rules, drafted
proposed orders regarding attorney discipline, met with Justices
to discuss and edit proposed orders.

Litigation role- Drafted complaints, motions, writ responses, in
limine briefs, discovery requests and responses, trial and
sentencing memoranda, Post-Conviction Relief responses, and
correspondence to judges, police officers and opposing counsel;
litigated felony trials 

Training CLE Presentations- 
*Inmate Sentencing Credits - Nevada Prosecuting Attorneyâ€™s Council 
(NVPAC) Annual Conference, September 2015 
*Portlandâ€™s Homelessness Crisis - International Municipal Lawyers 
Association (IMLA) Annual Conference, October 2018
*Protests and the First Amendment International Municipal Lawyers 
Association (IMLA) Annual Conference, October 2018 



 






	06.11.25 Board Meeting Public Book
	Public Comment 2

